VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH BOARD OF TRUSTEES
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
Village of Antioch, Lake County, lllinois
Municipal Building: 874 Main Street, Antioch, IL 60002
September 25, 2024

l. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Gartner called the September 25, 2024 Committee of the Whole meeting of the Board of
Trustees to order at 7:02 pm at the Antioch Municipal Building located at 874 Main Street, Antioch, IL
and via Zoom.

II. ROLL CALL

Roll call indicated the following Trustees were present: Burman, Bluthardt, McNeill, Pierce,
Macek and Pedersen. Also present were Mayor Gartner, Attorney Vasselli, Administrator Guttschow
and Clerk Romine.

lll. Absent Trustees Wishing to Attend Remotely
There were no Trustees wishing to attend remotely.

IV. Mayoral Report —
None.

Citizens Wishing to Address the Board
None.

V. Regular Business
1. Approval of the September 11, 2024 Committee of the Whole meeting minutes as
presented - Trustee Bluthardt moved, seconded by Trustee Pierce, to approve the September 11,
2024 Committee of the Whole meeting minutes as presented.
Upon roll call, the vote was:
YES: 5: Burman, Bluthardt, McNeill, Pierce and Macek.
NO: 0.
ABSENT: 0.
ABSTAIN: 1: Pedersen.
THE MOTION CARRIED.

2. Request for a liquor license from Hometown Bistro to be located at 982 State Route 59 —
Mr. Sonny Judge from the BP presented their request for a liquor license at this location. Mr. Scott
Erdman representing the petitioner said they plan to have LaCal cantina run the operations, however,
the building owner intends to hold the license. Trustee Pierce asked if the license would be issued
before a certificate of occupancy was granted, which it would not.

3. Review of the Police Pension Actuarial Valuation — Mr. Kevin Cavanaugh from Lauterbach &
Amen discussed the results of this years actuarial report. He reviewed the findings in the report and
changes over the previous year. He discussed unfunded liabilities, contribution calculations, and factors
impacting changes. He concluded that the fund is expected to be fully solvent in order to fund all
retirements when required by statute due to the Village of Antioch’s history of funding the pensions.
This item will be placed on the next Village Board agenda for consideration and approval.

4. Discussion regarding a proposed assisted living facility — Director Garrigan discussed the



request for an assisted living facility, which was previously presented as a concept plan, but requires a
special use based on existing zoning. There was a positive recommendation by the Planning and
Zoning Board after adding landscaping based on expressed concerns by adjacent residents. The
applicant also worked with the First Fire Protection District to incorporate a fire lane, which meets the
requirements of the Fire District.

Trustee Macek asked if the fire department ever reported if this would disrupt 911 services due
to increased calls to the facility based on the nature of their services.

Mr. Sam Martin, representative of Oasis Senior Living, said they are a self-contained, assisted
living facility which will have caregivers and nurses in the building. They rarely get 911 involved unless
it's a life safety situation. They have a total of 34 building throughout US and don’t rely on 911 for
assistance since everything is done within the community.

Trustee Burman asked if this facility will only service Antioch residents, or be open outside of
Antioch. Mr. Martin said they are a private pay facility and open to anyone. He added that usually the
buildings fill up within the area they are built, but they cannot deny someone from another area coming
in.

Trustee Bluthardt asked for details on the landscaping. Director Garrigan presented images of
landscaping at maturity after 5 years. Trustee Bluthardt asked what could be developed at that site
without approval. Director Garrigan responded that it is zoned R-1, residential, and could be single
family or duplex homes which would have to go through platting.

Mayor Gartner asked if staff could prepare a 2-story plat showing ariel of the property with
adjacent properties and noting the distance. Director Garrigan will provide a plat with dimensions
showing this proposed use.

Mr. Will Hepburn of Bono Consulting Engineers said the building is setback at least 90 feet from
the rear of their house to the building.

Trustee Burman asked about in house medication, and expressed concern with having
pharmaceuticals on hand. Mr. Martin said the facility will be licensed by the State of lllinois, and
everything is under lock and key and inventories. They will be required to follow similar or harsher
regulations than hospitals, and the building is secure.

Trustee McNeill commented on her experiences with assisted living facilities, stating it is not
uncommon to put them in a residential setting.

This item will be placed on the next Village Board agenda for consideration.

Recognition of Dave Karczewski - Mayor Gartner recognized David Karczewski from the Piggly
Wiggly for his countless contributions to the community and presented him with a plaque of recognition.

5. Discussion regarding a concept plan for Carmax —
Trustee Pedersen recused herself from the discussion and left he board room at 7:37pm.

Director Garrigan provided an overview of the request for an 86-acre development as part of the
Antioch Corporate Park zoned M-1.



Mr. Bruce Goldsmith, attorney representing the petitioner, provided an overview of the project.
He discussed the primary goal of the park, and the permitted use for their facility.

Mr. Steve Hudak, representative for Carmax, said the project area includes 25-30 acres of
undeveloped wetlands and floodplain that cannot be developed. He reviewed the company, the
proposal of an inventory center and its functions.

Mr. Kelton McCoy, representative of Carmax, discussed conversations with staff and presented
the site layout and viewability from neighboring property. He presented highway perspectives and the
site and landscape plan. He reviewed customer parking and additional site plan details. He presented
the traffic study completed by Kimley Horn, which does not show any impacts to traffic in the area.

Mr. Goldsmith said there has been a good interactive discussion with staff, and the petitioner
has addressed concerns raised by staff.

Mr. David Miller with the Johnson Research Group presented the economic analysis for the
facility including tax revenue generation, employment income and property taxes.

Director Garrigan said the applicant has filed a site plan and final plat, but is looking for general
input and questions from the Village Board at this time.

Mr. Hudak said they anticipate a March of 2028 opening.

Trustee Bluthardt asked about plans for signage. Mr. Hudak said it's not a retail store, so they
aren’t requiring signage. Attorney Goldsmith discussed the requirements in the PUD and said they are
not opposed to a monument sign as long as it complies with the PUD.

Trustee McNeill asked if there were any environmental impacts to the creek. Director Garrigan
said there have been concerns expressed by staff, and have requested Best Management Practices
(BMP) from the applicant, which will be reviewed by the engineer for the Village.

Mr. Jordan Tastad, engineer with Kimley Horn, discussed the Lake County Stormwater
Ordinance and treatment of runoff, stating they have provided storage, which is enough to store rainfall
for a 100-year rain event. The design complies with the Lake County Stormwater Ordinance.

Trustee McNeill asked if this is a permitted use. Director Garrigan said a car dealership is a
permitted use in M1, and this is clearly a wholesale facility that would comply with the zoning.

Mayor Gartner has said that the applicant has done everything that’s been asked of staff and
addressed all concerns.

Mr. Goldsmith commended staff on their communication with the applicant throughout the
process.

Trustee Pedersen returned to the meeting at 8:12pm.

6. Discussion regarding an ordinance waiving building permit fees for disabled veterans -
Director Garrigan discussed the state statute which allows the waiver of building permit fees for
residents for veterans when accommodating their disability. Trustee Pierce asked what the financial
impact would be if the board waived permit fees for disabled veterans regardless of the project. Director
Garrigan said it would likely be minimal.



This item will be placed on the next consent agenda for consideration.

7. Discussion regarding an ordinance amendment related to addressing meetings —
Mayor Gartner discussed the item which was implemented by the Village of Steger with success. This
item will be placed on the next consent agenda for consideration.

VI. OTHER BUSINESS
None.

VIl. Department reports

Communications — Assistant Village Administrator Jim Moran discussed the recent onboarding of
Kelley Crimmins and her first project working on upcoming fall events. He reported on recent events
held such as the end of the concert series and farmers market. He discussed the Small Town
Smokeout event, and the Fall Wine Walk. He reported that the OSLAD grant request was submitted
earlier this month.

Parks — Interim Director Nehila discussed the end of seasonal operations, including some high points
of the pool season. He provided updates on the preschool, and work on the Centennial Park master
plan and the strong application for an OSLAD grant. He discussed the recent Park Commission
meeting, and their conversation regarding dedicated pickleball courts at the Tim Osmond Sports Park.
He stated that the rules for Sequoit Creek Park are on file with the Village Clerk. Assistant
Administrator Moran is working with Impressions Count on designing sign with the rules.

Public Works — Director Heimbrodt updated the Board on the Woods of Antioch project, which is
nearly complete. Work will continue over the coming months to develop a plan set and bid package for
2025. He discussed the road program which began a week early. Mayor Gartner said they have a call
scheduled with the state to discuss funds for lead line replacement.

VIil. EXECUTIVE SESSION — Litigation and property acquisition
Trustee Bluthardt moved, seconded by Trustee Pierce, to enter into executive session at 8:30
pm to discuss litigation and property acquisition. Upon roll call, the vote was:
YES: 6: Burman, Bluthardt, McNeill, Pierce, Macek and Pedersen.
NO: 0.
ABSENT: 0.
THE MOTION CARRIED.

Trustee Pedersen moved, seconded by Trustee Pierce, to return from executive session at 9:16
pm with no action taken. Upon roll call, the vote was:
YES: 6: Burman, Bluthardt, McNeill, Pierce, Macek and Pedersen.
NO: 0.
ABSENT: 0.
THE MOTION CARRIED.

IX. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further discussion, the Village Board of Trustees Committee of the Whole meeting
adjourned at 9:16 pm.

Respectfully submitted,
Lori K. Romine, RMC/CMC
Village Clerk



	I.  CALL TO ORDER

